SOUTHWEST TENNESSEE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) 26-0003
BANKING AND CREDIT CARD MERCHANT SERVICES
PRE-PROPOSAL QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES
FINAL QUESTIONS DEADLINE: 10/22/2025

Proposers Invited (at Proposer’s Request):
1. Jerry Heniser – jerry.heniser@truist.com 
2. John Koch - johnpaul.koch@pnfp.com
3. Heather Medlin - hmedlin@firsthorizon.com
4. George Slade - ghslade@firsthorizon.com
5. Rick Morrison - rick.morrison@fiserv.com


Important RFP Notes: 

· Proposal Form and Delivery instructions are provided in RFP Section 3.1. 
· Proposers may submit either electronically or in hard copy. 
· Electronic submission of Proposals and Client References will be accepted via email to: purchasing@southwest.tn.edu
· Client References sent electronically must be received directly from the Client providing the reference.

· Dates and times are found in RFP Section 2, Schedule of Events. Proposals must be received by 2:00 p.m. CT on November 10, 2025. Late Proposals cannot be accepted and shall be rejected as non-responsive. 

· Attention is called to the checklist in Attachment 6.15 (i.e., Proposer Checklist for Prevention of Common Mistakes that lead to Proposal Rejection). The checklist is not meant to be an all-inclusive list of requirements, but rather, a listing of the most frequently overlooked items resulting in rejection. All mandatory requirements are firm. Proposers that fail to provide or satisfy all mandatory requirements, in the format specified in the RFP, will be cause for Proposal rejection.


Proposer Questions:

Question #1: Does SWTCC have plans to change or upgrade its ERP system soon?

Response:  No

Question #2: Is there current interest in exploring more with integrated payables?

Response: Currently, we are not, but we would like to have the choice in the future if we do.



Question #3: Is there current interest in exploring more with Zelle payments for student refund checks, athletic program, student employment, or single vendor payments?  

Response: Currently, we are not, but we will want to have the choice in the future if we do.
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Question #4: What are your top priority goals, projects, or initiatives currently being worked on or planned for the next 12 – 24 months?

Response: To increase electronic payments versus those paid by check with students, vendors, and employees.

Question #5: What do you like and/or dislike about your merchant Clover software and hardware?

Response: Currently, Clover is meeting our needs.

Question #6: Are you using multiple banks or ISOs for merchant services processing?

Response:  We do not use multiple banks. Fiserv/Clover for Merchant Services

Question #7: In section 6.6b of the pricing proposal spreadsheet, you have a column asking for the “Interchange Rate %”.  Can you clarify or confirm if you are asking for the “Discount Rate

Response:  On the merchant statement, sales are multiplied by a discount rate—example from Merchant Statement: VISA DEBIT SALES DISCOUNT DISC RATE TIMES $169176.46 Service charges. Please view the attached document, 'Merchant Statements from SWTCC'.

Question #8: In the Attachment 6.5, Technical Proposal & Evaluation Guide – Section A, Item Reference A.5:  Is SWTCC asking for two higher education Treasury Client references?  If so, our RFP responses typically include reference contact information only, with the understanding that the institution will directly engage the reference for their comments.  Is this approach satisfactory for SWTCC?

Response:  Proposers are to provide two current positive credit references from vendors with which the Proposer has done business, written in the form of standard business letters, on the reference’s letterhead, signed and dated within the past three (3) months. 

Question #9: What accounting system/ERP does SWTCC use?


Response: Ellucian Banner


Question #10: Does SWTCC utilize a purchasing card program? If so…
		•  What is the annual spend on the program?
		•  Are virtual and/or ghost cards used?
		•  Is G/L coding utilized?
		•  What reporting is required?

Response: Southwest currently utilizes a P-Card program, but it is limited to Senior Leadership.
Southwest provides answers to the additional questions on October 27th, 2025.

Question #11: Regarding check scanning, how many scanners are currently being utilized?    

Response: 3

Question #12: What is SWTCC's monthly wire volume (dollar amount and transaction number)?

Response:  13-15 Transactions/ $4,000,000.00-$4,500,000.00 Wire Volume

Question #13: What is SWTCC's monthly check deposit volume (dollar amount and transaction number)?

Response: Volume Between $200,000.00-$550,000.00 Transaction number between 13-20

Question #14: While the number of overall ACHs originated is provided, what is the breakdown of ACH debits and ACH credits originated?

Response: See attachment; RFP BANK ACH/Debit
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Question #15: Please provide an analysis statement (volumes included/pricing removed) for all SWTCC accounts.

Response:  See attachment: Combined Operating-Insurance-Payroll-Foundation Analysis Statement.

Question #16: What is the average balance of the entire depository relationship, not just the ECR-only DDA?

Response:  Operating Account $1,000,000, Insurance $20,000, Payroll $5,000, Foundation $200,000

Question #17:  Att. 6.11: Please clarify what you expect for Attachment 6.11 Vendor Product Accessibility Statement and Documentation.


Response: This is a requirement of the Department of Justice, which mandates that all web content be more accessible.  
													
Question #18: Att. 6.12: Please clarify what you expect for Attachment 6.12 Accessibility Conformance and Remediation Form.

Response:  Each section is to be answered.

Question #19: How many merchant IDs do you currently have?
		•  SWTCC utilizes multiple merchant IDs (how many?) and terminal numbers 				(how many?).

Response: 8 Merchant IDs

Question #20: Can we get merchant statements or volumes of merchant activity per Merchant ID?

Response:  Attached. Merchant Statements from SWTCC File

Question #21: Does SWTCC pass along a fee, surcharge, or Dual Pricing?

Response: No

Question #22: How many devices are needed? See below. Is this the correct number?
		•  credit card terminals (3) for the cafeterias
		•  mobile devices (2) for concessions

Response:  Possibly would expand to 5 for the cafeteria and up to 4 for concessions.


Question #23:  Is proposer acknowledgement (attachment 6.3) that other boards of regents’ colleges listed in 6.8 or state departments have the option to utilize the resulting agreement a requirement for winning this RFP? 

Response: It is an acknowledgement that other TN Board of Regents, as well as the major TN Universities listed in Attachment 6.8, can choose to piggyback off of this RFP. 

Question #24: Please provide a description of what is included in attachment 6.3 when referencing “State of Tennessee Departments.” 

Response:  This is referring to state departments within Tennessee, https://www.tn.gov/directory/department-directory.html.  It is a rare occurrence that those departments utilize College solicitations/resulting agreements, but as fellow state entities, those departments are included in the question.


Question #25: What armored courier services does the college use today?

Response:  No armored car services are currently being used. 


Question #26: How does the college receive the Account Reconciliation reports today?

Response: The college receives a daily report of ACH debits and ACH credits sent to the college’s email. The college can also download the same transactions, as well as any checks that have cleared, and any deposits or E-Refunds that have been returned through the banking portal.

Question #27: Are there currently ATMs available at each of the three requested sites? Yes, Macon Cove, Union Avenue, and Maxine A. Smith Center

If so, what is the annual ATM volume for each terminal at the three requested locations? 
See attachment for volume at Macon and Parrish. 

Does the bank have the right to pull any of the machines if we see low transaction volume?

Response: Yes, but only after consulting with Southwest Tennessee Community College
													

Question #28: C.2.6 Ask for locations across the state of TN. Please clarify whether, for this response, you are explicitly looking for places in the Midsouth area. 

Response: Southwest is seeking locations in the Midsouth area, but if there are other suitable locations outside of this region, please do not hesitate to provide them.   

Question #29: Does SWTCC have the option to award a split contract? One for banking, and choose a different provider for RFP credit card processing? 

Response: No, Southwest prefers the successful proposer to handle both the banking and credit card processing. 

Question #30: What payment gateways integrate with TouchNet Software? 

Response: TouchNet integrates with all major payment gateways. 

 Do your current Clover devices communicate with TouchNet in any way? 

Response: No, Clover does not integrate with TouchNet.

													

Question #31: What percentage of your transactions are face-to-face? Over the Phone? Online? 

Response: Currently, most payments are face-to-face.  We have used the Clover online feature.  We do not use over-the-phone services with Clover.  TouchNet - Currently, most payments are made face-to-face. 
													

Question #32: What types of card terminals are you using today?
· “Work station w/ cash drawer” – can you confirm this is the Clover Station Duo? Yes
· “hand-held” – can you confirm this is the Clover Flex? Yes
· “iPad mini w/ cash drawer” – can you confirm this is the Clover Mini? Yes
· Any other devices in scope? No

Response: 
Workstations- 1 Clover Station Pro Terminal with printer and cash drawer located at Union Cafeteria. 1 Clover Station Pro Terminal with printer and cash drawer located at Macon Cafeteria.

Handhelds- 2 Clover Flex

iPad- 1 iPad Clover Mini with cash drawer and printer located at Maxine Smith To Go Café.


